
 

763.479.0527                                                  1920 County Road 90                                          Fax: 763.479.0528 
                                                                       Independence, MN 55359 
                                                                    www.ci.independence.mn.us 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA          
MONDAY MARCH 2, 2020 
 
 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING TIME: 6:30 PM 
 
1. Call to Order 
 
2. Pledge of Allegiance 

 
3. Roll Call 

 
4. ****Consent Agenda**** 
All items listed under Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by Council and will be acted 
on by one motion.  There will be no separate discussion of these items. If discussion is desired, 
that item will be removed from the Consent Agenda and will be considered separately. 
 

a. Approval of City Council Minutes from the February 18, 2020 Regular City Council 
Meeting. 

b. Approval of City Council Minutes from the February 13, 2020 Regular City Council 
Workshop. 

c. Approval of Accounts Payable; Checks Numbered 19479-19503  
 

5. Set Agenda – Anyone Not on the Agenda can be Placed Under Open/Misc.  
 

6. Reports of Boards and Committees by Council and Staff. 
 

7. Three Rivers Park District: District 1 Representative Marge Beard - Introduction, Park 
District Updates. 

 
8. West Hennepin Public Safety Director, Gary Kroells, January 2020 Monthly Report. 

 
9. Consideration of Establishment of the Accessory Building Height Review Committee and 

Associated Application Fee. 
 

a. RESOLUTION NO. 20-0302-01: Committee Formation Resolution 
 

b. RESOLUTION NO. 20-0302-02: Proposed 2020 Fee Schedule Update 
 

10. Open/Misc. 
 

11. Adjourn. 



 

1 

City of Independence 

City Council Meeting Minutes 

6:30 p.m. February 18, 2020 

 

MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING OF THE 

INDEPENDENCE CITY COUNCIL  

TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 18, 2020 –6:30 P.M. 

 

1.  CALL TO ORDER. 

 

Pursuant to due call and notice thereof, a regular meeting of the Independence City Council was called to 

order by Mayor Johnson at 6:30 p.m. 

 

2. Pledge of Allegiance 

 

3. ROLL CALL  

 

PRESENT: Mayor Johnson, Councilors Betts, Grotting, McCoy and Spencer 

ABSENT: None 

STAFF: City Administrator Kaltsas, Assistant to Administrator Horner, City Attorney Vose 

VISITORS: Daryl Jorgenson, Cody Johnson, Mary Jorgensen, Jayne Jorgensen, Ann Slavec, Jason and 

Kathleen Nelson 

 

4. ****Consent Agenda**** 

All items listed under Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by Council and will be acted on by one 

motion.  There will be no separate discussion of these items. If discussion is desired, that item will be 

removed from the Consent Agenda and will be considered separately. 

 

a. Approval of City Council Minutes from the February 4, 2020 Regular City Council Meeting. 

b. Approval of Accounts Payable; Checks Numbered 19447-19478 (Check #’s 19445 & 19446 were 

voided). 

 

Motion by Betts, second by Grotting to approve the Consent Agenda. Ayes: Johnson, Betts, McCoy, 

Spencer and Grotting.  Nays: None.  Absent: None. Abstain. None.  MOTION DECLARED CARRIED. 

 

5. SET AGENDA – ANYONE NOT ON THE AGENDA CAN BE PLACED UNDER OPEN/MISC. 

 

6. REPORTS OF BOARDS AND COMMITTEES BY COUNCIL AND STAFF 

 

Spencer attended the following meetings: 

• City Council Workshop 

• Christian Eichers Eagle Scout Ceremony 

• Met with Maple Plain Mayor 

 

Grotting attended the following meetings: 

• WeCAN Omelet fundraiser 

• City Council Workshop 

• Met with Extratyme 

• Met with Mediacom 

 

 

 



 

2 

City of Independence 

City Council Meeting Minutes 

6:30 p.m. February 18, 2020 

 

McCoy attended the following meetings:  

• Met at Cloquet to review Fire District operation 

• City Council Workshop 

 

Betts attended the following meetings: 

• West Hennepin Chamber of Commerce Meeting 

• City Council Workshop 

• Drug Task Force Luncheon 

 

Johnson attended the following meetings: 

• Met with Jerry Hertaus and WHPS Kroells 

• Northwest League of Municipalities 

• City Council Workshop 

• Orono Healthy Youth Collaboration 

• Drug Task Force Luncheon 

• Eagle Scout Ceremony for Christian Eichers 

• Met several stare Commissioners at Minnesota History Center Meeting 

• Former Councilmember Vassar funeral 

 

Horner attended the following meetings: 

• City Council Workshop 

• West Hennepin Chamber of Commerce Board Meeting 

• Election Judge Training Classes 

• Eagle Scout Ceremony for Christian Eichers 

• Public Accuracy Testing  

 

Kaltsas attended the following meetings: 

 

7. (REQUESTED TO BE CONTINUED TO FEBRUARY 18, 2020) Vincent Velie III (Applicant) 

requests that the City consider the following action for the property located at 3315 County Road 92 

N, Independence, MN (PID No. 09-118-24-34-0004): 

 

a. To consider granting an interim use permit to replace the existing conditional use permit.  The new 

interim use permit would allow a landscape business to operate from the subject property.  The 

interim use permit would add new conditions to the property and the existing conditional use 

permit would be removed. 

 

• Applicant has requested this to be tabled until a future City Council meeting TBD 

 

8. (REQUESTED TO BE CONTINUED TO FEBRUARY 18, 2020) Theresa Marple 

(Applicant/Owner) requests that the City consider the following action for the property located at 7825 

County Road 11, Independence, MN (PID No. 09-118-24-22-0003): 

 

a. To consider granting a variance to allow a minor subdivision of property zoned AG-Agriculture 

that does not meet all applicable requirements.  The subdivision proposed would create two 

approximately 40-acre parcels from the existing 80-acre parcel.   

 

 



 

3 

City of Independence 

City Council Meeting Minutes 

6:30 p.m. February 18, 2020 

 

Property/Site Information: 

 

The subject property is located south of County Road 11 and just west of The County Road 11/County 

Road 92 intersection. The property has an existing conditional use permit (CUP) to allow a guest house 

Road 92 intersection and an accessory structure larger than 5,000 SF. There are approximately 12 detached 

accessory buildings located on the property. The property is comprised of tillable acreage and dense wooded 

areas. 

 

Property Information: 7825 County Road 11 

Zoning: AG-Agriculture 

Comprehensive Plan: Agriculture 

Acreage: 78.70 acres 

 

The applicant recently met with the City to discuss the subdivision of this property. It was noted that the 

City would allow a minor subdivision of the property which would permit a new parcel to be created with a 

minimum lot size of 2.5 acres and maximum lot size of 10 acres. The City and the applicant looked at various 

configurations that would allow for a 10-acre parcel to be split off from the property and incorporate 

various configurations that would allow for a 10-acre parcel to be split off from the property and incorporate 

the existing second house and detached accessory structures. The City does not allow the subdivision of 

property zoned Agriculture with the exception of lot line rearrangements and rural view lot splits. The City 

would have to consider granting a variance from the accommodate requisite side yard building setbacks for 

the existing detached accessory structures. 

 

The City has standards for granting a variance which need to be considered prior to making a recommendation 

relating to the application. The standards established by the City require the applicant to demonstrate that the 

requested variance does not create a situation that is not in keeping with the character of the surrounding area. 

In addition, the applicant must demonstrate that the requested variance is unique to the subject property. The 

standards for granting a variance are as follows: 

 

520.21. Standards for granting variances. Subdivision 1. The City Council may grant a variance from the 

terms of this zoning code, including restrictions placed on nonconformities, in cases where: 1) the variance 

is in harmony with the general purposes and intent of this zoning code; 2) the variance is consistent with 

the comprehensive plan; and 3) the applicant establishes that there are practical difficulties in complying 

with the zoning code (Amended, Ord. 2011-08) Subd. 2. An applicant for a variance must demonstrate that 

there are practical difficulties in complying with the zoning code. For such purposes, “practical difficulties” 

means: 

 

(a) The property owner proposes to use the property in a reasonable manner not 

permitted by the zoning code; 

(b) the plight of the property owner is due to circumstances unique to the property not 

created by the landowner; 

(c) the variance, if granted, will not alter the essential character of the locality. 

 

Economic considerations alone do not constitute practical difficulties. Practical difficulties include, but are 

not limited to, inadequate access to direct sunlight for solar energy systems. (Amended, Ord. 2011-08) 

Subd. 3. The City Council shall not grant a variance to permit a use that is not allowed under the 

zoning code based on the zoning classification of the affected property. (Amended, Ord. 2011-08) 520.23. 

Conditions and restrictions. The board of adjustments may recommend, and the City Council may 

impose conditions on a variance. Conditions must be directly related to and must bear a rough 



 

4 

City of Independence 

City Council Meeting Minutes 

6:30 p.m. February 18, 2020 

 

proportionality to the impact created by the variance. (Amended, Ord. 2011-08) 

 

Consideration of the standards for granting a variance: 

a. The applicants are proposing to split the property so that there is an existing residence on 

 both properties. The use of the property as residential is consistent with the AG Agriculture 

 Zoning District. 

b. The properties created by the subdivision are similar in nature and character to the surrounding 

properties. There are many existing properties located along County Road 11 that are similar in size 

and configuration. 

c. The character of the surrounding area is mixed residential/agricultural and guided for long 

 term agriculture. The City’s current comprehensive plan guides this area for long term agriculture. The 

 City will need to determine if the proposed subdivision is in keeping with the intent of the City’s 

 comprehensive plan. 

d. The requested variance to allow the subdivision of the property must be found to be unique to this 

property. The property was historically split into two parcels. The presence of two principle structures 

on the property is generally unique to just a handful of properties in the principle structures on the 

property is generally unique to just a handful of properties in the City. The significant number and size 

of detached accessory structures on this property is also unique. The City should note that the property 

is able to realize a rural view lot subdivision of the property. The rural view lot subdivision would 

allow a maximum of two 10-acre parcels to be subdivided from the whole. In reviewing the property 

frontage, lot depth to lot width and location of the two existing residences on the property, the 

proposed subdivision appears to be a reasonable request. The conditional use permit for the guest 

 house will be revoked as a part of the subdivision and the properties will both be conforming in the 

 after condition. 

 

The City will need to determine if the requested variance to allow the minor subdivision of the property 

meets the requirements for granting a variance. The proposed subdivision, if approved, would create two 

properties that meet all other applicable criteria of the City’s zoning ordinance. Lot frontage, setbacks and 

accessory building square footage would all meet requisite standards. 

 

Min. Lot Frontage Required: 

300 Lineal Feet 

Lot Frontage Proposed: 

(Parcel A) - 685 Lineal Feet 

(Parcel B) - 625 Lineal Feet 

 

The applicant has provided locations for an alternative septic site on Parcel B. The septic system for 

Parcel A will need to be inspected upon the sale of the property. The City will require verification of a 

secondary site on Parcel A. The applicant is showing the requisite drainage and utility easements for both 

properties are subdivided along County Road 11. The additional right of way easement that has been 

requested is 17 feet wide. Staff is recommending that the City require the additional 17 feet of right of way 

requested is 17 feet wide. The additional right of way would be dedicated in the form of an easement 

along the south side of County Road 11. The additional right of way does not appear to impact the proposed 

subdivision. 

 

The creation of a new parcel typically requires the payment of a park dedication fee to the City. In this 

case, the property was historically subdivided prior to the combination of the properties in 2009. Staff 

researched the initial subdivision of the property and determined that no previous park dedication was paid 



 

5 

City of Independence 

City Council Meeting Minutes 

6:30 p.m. February 18, 2020 

 

currently $3,500 per lot up to 4.99 acres, plus $750 per acre for each acre over 5 acres. The park dedication 

fee for this subdivision would be approximately $27,500. Staff is seeking direction the park dedication fee for 

this subdivision would be approximately $27,500. Staff is seeking direction from the City relating to the 

requirement for park dedication for this property. 

 

Neighbor Comments: 

 

The City has not received any comments regarding the proposed subdivision or conditional use permit. 

 

Planning Commissioners reviewed the request for a variance and minor subdivision. Commissioners 

asked for clarification on the historic use of the property and when the property was initially subdivided. It 

was noted that the property was subdivided in the mid 1980’s to allow for the construction of the house that 

is located furthest south. Commissioners further discussed that there are two homes on the property and 

that allowing a subdivision of the property would be a better long-term solution than the existing Conditional 

Use Permit allowing a guest home. Commissioners discussed the park dedication fees and recommended 

that the City not require any fees for the proposed subdivision. There was discussion of requiring a 

minimum amount of park dedication based on the maximum rural view lot split of 10 acres. Planning 

Commissioners discussed the configuration of the proposed north/south lot line and noted that it was 

slightly skewed. It should be noted that following Planning Commission review, the applicant has revised 

the plan to straighten the north/south property line by making one lot 41 acres and the other 37 acres rather 

than trying to make equal properties. This adjustment would potentially allow for one additional rural view 

lot subdivision to be realized on the 41-acre parcel. Ultimately, Planning Commissioners recommended 

approval of the proposed subdivision with conditions and findings. 

 

Recommendation: 

Planning Commissioners recommended approval of the requested variance to allow a minor subdivision 

and with the following findings and conditions: 

 

1. The proposed variance and minor subdivision request meet all applicable conditions and restrictions stated 

in Chapter V, Section 520.19, Procedures on variances, and Chapter V, Section 500, Subdivisions, in the City 

of Independence Zoning Ordinance.  
 

2. The City finds that the criteria for granting a variance have been met by the applicant and that the criteria 

for granting a variance have been met by the applicant and specifically that: 

 

 a. The requested variance would allow a subdivision to create two parcels that fit into the character of 

 the surrounding property. 

 b. There are two homes located on the subject property and the subdivision of the properties 

 will allow the homes to be located on separate properties in the after condition. 

 

 c. This property could be subdivided into two lots utilizing the rural view lot subdivision 

 provisions of the zoning ordinance. 

 

3. The Applicant shall provide verification to the City that Parcels A and B have a secondary septic site 

location. 

 

4. The Applicant shall provide, execute and record the requisite drainage and utility easement the requisite 

drainage and utility easement within the county within six (6) months of approval. 

 



 

6 

City of Independence 

City Council Meeting Minutes 

6:30 p.m. February 18, 2020 

 

5. The Applicant shall dedicate 17 feet of right of way to the City along County Road 11. The Applicant shall 

prepare the requisite easement exhibit and legal description and execute and record the document with the 

county within six (6) months of approval. 

 

6. Following approval and recording of the minor subdivision, the City will revoke the existing conditional 

use permit for a guest house on the property. 

 

7. The Applicant shall pay for all costs associated with the City’s review of the requested variance and 

subdivision. 

 

8. The Applicant shall record the subdivision and City Council Resolution with the county within 

six (6) months of approval. 

 

Betts asked if a park dedication fee has been waived before and Kaltsas said there was not a record he could 

find where we had waived a fee. Betts asked if that would set a precedent if this one was waived. Johnson 

noted there were two houses already there so may not need one. Fees are based on the smallest lot. McCoy 

said he was in favor of waiving the fee because there are two homes. 

 

Motion by Betts, second by McCoy to approve RESOLUTION 20-0218-02 granting a variance to allow 

a minor subdivision of property zoned AG-Agriculture that does not meet all applicable requirements.  

The subdivision proposed would create two approximately 40-acre parcels from the existing 80-acre 

parcel for the property located at 7825 County Road 11, Independence, MN (PID No. 09-118-24-22-

0003). Ayes: Johnson, Betts, McCoy, Spencer and Grotting.  Nays: None.  Absent: None. Abstain. None.  

MOTION DECLARED CARRIED. 

 

9. Consideration of approving plans and specifications and ordering advertisement for bids of the 2020 

Bituminous Street Overlay Project.  

 

a. RESOLUTION 20-0218-03 – approving plans and specifications and ordering advertisement for 

bids. 

 

Kaltsas said the City has determined that certain streets in the City need reconstruction, repair and 

improvements. The City based its findings on the long-range street improvement plans which assess all 

streets in the City based on their age, condition, number of users and current condition. In order to better 

preserve and maintain certain roads, the City’s engineer reviewed detailed plans and specifications for 

the 2020 Street Overlay Project. The overlay project will provide for an approximately one and half inch 

bituminous overlay on top of the existing roads included in the project. The project will also include the 

installation of a gravel shoulder, specific crack repair and the installation of a bituminous apron at certain road 

intersections. Approximately 6 miles of existing bituminous roads will be included in the project and are 

identified below: 

 

• Stephanie Way 

• Brei Kessel Road 

• Merz Way 

• Waldemar Way 

• Providence Place 

• Providence Court, Warren Way 

• Providence Curve 



 

7 

City of Independence 

City Council Meeting Minutes 

6:30 p.m. February 18, 2020 

 

• Providence Path 

• Turner Road 

• Polo Club Road 

• Copeland Road 

• Lindgren Lane 

• Independence Road 

• Budd Street 

• Fieldstone Place 

• Stone Court 

• Hillstrom Road 

• Drake Court 

• Drake Drive 

• Painter Creek Green 

• Timber Island Trail 

 

City Council is asked to consider approval of RESOLUTION NO. 20-0218-03 approving plans and 

specifications for the 2020 Street Overlay Project and order advertisement of bids. 

 

Motion by Spencer, second by McCoy to approve RESOLUTION 20-0218-03 – approving plans and 

specifications and ordering advertisement for bids for the of the 2020 Bituminous Street Overlay 

Project. Ayes: Johnson, Betts, McCoy, Spencer and Grotting.  Nays: None.  Absent: None. Abstain. 

None.  MOTION DECLARED CARRIED. 

 

10. Consideration of the following resolutions calling for a public hearing on the capital improvements 

plan bonds and street reconstruction bonds. 

 

a. RESOLUTION 20-0218-04 - calling a public hearing on the street reconstruction bonds. 

 

b. RESOLUTION 20-0218-05 - calling a public hearing on the capital improvement plan bonds. 

Reimbursement Resolution relating to the proposed City Hall and the street reconstruction project.   

 

Kaltsas said the City has determined that certain streets in the City need reconstruction, repair and 

improvements. The City is authorized by Minnesota Statutes, Section 475.58, subdivision 3b (the “Act”), to 

prepare a plan for reconstruction or overlay of streets in the City over the next five years, including a 

description of the affected streets and estimated costs (the “Plan”), and to issue general obligation bonds to 

finance the cost of street reconstruction activities described in the Plan. Pursuant to the Act, the City is 

required to hold a public hearing regarding the Plan and issuance of the bonds. 

 

The City now finds that it is necessary to prepare a Plan setting forth proposed street reconstruction projects 

in the City for the years 2020 through 2024, and to provide for the issuance of general obligation bonds 

thereunder in an aggregate principal amount not to exceed $1,400,000 (the “Bonds”), to finance certain 

costs of the Plan. In addition, the City is authorized by Minnesota Statutes, Section 475.521, as amended (the 

“Act”) to finance certain capital improvements under an approved five-year capital improvement plan (the 

“Plan”) by the issuance of general obligation bonds of the City payable from ad valorem taxes. Capital 

improvements include acquisition or betterment of public lands, buildings or other improvements for the 

purpose of a city hall, town hall, library, public safety facility and public works facility (excluding light rail 

transit or any activity related to it, or a park, road, bridge, administrative building other than a city or town 

hall, or land for any of those facilities). 



 

8 

City of Independence 

City Council Meeting Minutes 

6:30 p.m. February 18, 2020 

 

 

The City now finds it necessary to prepare a Plan setting forth proposed capital improvements in the City 

for the years 2020 through 2024 and to provide for the issuance of general obligation bonds thereunder in 

an aggregate principal amount not to exceed $2,500,000 (the “Bonds”) to finance certain costs of the Plan, 

including the costs of renovating, expanding, improving and equipping the City’s existing City Hall, public 

safety and public works facilities. 

 

Pursuant to the Act, before issuance of bonds under both Plans described above, the City Council is required 

to hold a public hearing on the Plans and the issuance of such bonds. The City hereby authorizes its staff and 

consultants to prepare the Plan for street reconstruction projects and capital improvement projects in the City 

over the five-year period of 2020 to 2024 in accordance with the Act and provide notice of the requisite public 

hearings. City Council is asked to consider approval of RESOLUTION NO. 20-0218-04 and RESOLUTION 

NO. 20-0218-05. 

 

Motion by Betts, second by Spencer to approve RESOLUTION 20-0218-04 - calling a public hearing on 

the street reconstruction bonds. Ayes: Johnson, Betts, McCoy, Spencer and Grotting.  Nays: None.  

Absent: None. Abstain. None.  MOTION DECLARED CARRIED. 

 

Motion by Spencer, second by Grotting RESOLUTION 20-0218-05 - calling a public hearing on the 

capital improvement plan bonds. Reimbursement Resolution relating to the proposed City Hall and the 

street reconstruction project. Ayes: Johnson, Betts, McCoy, Spencer and Grotting.  Nays: None.  

Absent: None. Abstain. None.  MOTION DECLARED CARRIED. 

 

11. Open/ Misc. (Communications/ Media Update for City) 

 

Grotting asked about additional providers and colocation. Kaltsas said the City allows colocation. Grotting 

pointed out this additional provider (Extratyme) are interested in providing service to the City which may help 

the rural residents. Johnson noted some of the State Commissioners and Legislators mentioned possibly 

providing more money for this kind of service.  

 

12. Adjourn. 

 

Motion by Spencer, second by Grotting to adjourn at 7:19 p.m. Ayes: Johnson, Betts, Grotting, Spencer 
and McCoy.  Nays: None.  Absent: None. Abstain. None.  MOTION DECLARED CARRIED. 
 

_____________________________ 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Trish Gronstal/ Recording Secretary 



MINUTES OF A WORK SESSION OF THE 

INDEPENDENCE CITY COUNCIL  

THURSDAY FEBRUARY 13, 2020 –7:00 A.M. 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER. 

 

Pursuant to due call and notice thereof, a work session of the Independence City Council was called to order 

by Mayor Johnson at 7:00 a.m. 

 

2. ROLL CALL  

 

PRESENT: Mayor Johnson, Councilors Betts, Spencer, McCoy and Grotting  

ABSENT: City Attorney Vose 

STAFF: City Administrator Kaltsas, Public Works Supervisor Bode, Assistant to Administrator Horner 

VISITORS: West Hennepin Police Chief Kroells, Susan Morgan and Bruce Schwartzman (BKV 

architects), Andrew Budde (City Engineer), Tammy Undahl (Northland Securities), Andrea 

Worcester (ABDO) 

 

3. General Administration  

 

a. City Hall 2020 Building Updates 

o BKV Architects – presentation and discussion of updated concept plan development and 

estimated project costs. 

 

BKV Architects presented updated concept plans that consider City feedback and recommendations. In 

addition to the concept plans, BKV has an initial pre-design estimate for the proposed improvements. All 

plans include the update of critical items; HVAC, carpet/flooring, paint/wallpaper and similar mechanical or 

minor repairs (i.e. exterior door seals, etc.). 

 

Staff has been working with the architects to put together a potential remodel/update project that would 

complement the base updates. The potential additional work would provide the following: 

 

Kaltsas noted the project includes updating the community room to include a “fixed” Council dais, audio 

visual upgrades, additional storage areas, new windows, new furniture. Reconfiguring the storage room and 

courtyard area to provide an updated lobby and museum display area for the City. This update includes 

enclosing a portion of the outdoor space located between the Police and City Hall buildings. Adding a smaller 

conference room to the City Hall side of the building. The plans also contemplate adding additional garage 

spaces to WHPS. There are several garage configurations that have been reviewed and range from the 

addition of 4 garage spaces to 10 garage spaces. In lieu of adding attached garage spaces to WHPS, the City 

has looked at constructing a larger pole barn adjacent to City Hall that would provide approximately 6,500 

additional square feet of storage and parking. This space could serve both WHPS and Public Works. 

 

Plans also address updated front building entrance, façade and building painting. The new entrance would 

include a new entrance lobby area and overhang, minor landscape improvements and security system 

improvements. 

 

BKV Architects reviewed the updated concept plan and associated costs estimates at the meeting to solicit 

discussion and feedback. 

 



McCoy said the new location of the window would take away the privacy of office employees. Kaltsas said 

that was considered and there will be some sort of backdrop to protect privacy. He said not having it visible 

makes it hard for people to even know it is even there.  

 

Grotting noted the second conference would be a nice asset but wondered if it was a little small. Kaltsas said 

they are looking at a 6-8-person space which is a nice size room. Morgan said they are still looking at vaulting 

the lobby space. Schwartzman said if it was important to make this larger, they could look at it.  

 

Kaltsas said a separate pole barn is still being discussed instead of enlarging the garage area for police space. 

He noted North Memorial could locate out of here and bring in extra money for the City through lease 

revenue. Grotting asked if a stand-alone garage is preferred. Kaltsas noted the difference in cost with a pole 

barn versus expanding the garage.  

 

Morgan outlined the different ideas for exterior and interior finishes. Betts said she didn’t like the wood finish 

on the outside. She felt a more classic look would be to use stone or block. Grotting said the wood looked 

nice. Betts said she does not want a lot of maintenance to the outside of the building. Morgan noted these are 

overview ideas only and there are many options.  

 

Morgan laid out the project schedule which can be updated at any point. A detailed cost estimate will be 

presented before Council within the next 10 weeks for approval. She said Council may also pause the project 

at any point if that is determined to be necessary.  

 

McCoy asked if the dais would be raised. Schwartzman said that it could be if that was the direction of 

Council. He noted code would have to be met for disabilities on a raised dais and applicable furniture needs. 

Kaltsas said that idea with the Council space is that it would be fixed and permanent.  

 

b. 2020 Bituminous Street Overlay Project 

o Project update and presentation of updated project cost and schedule. 

 

Kaltsas said the City’s engineer has prepared detailed plans and an engineer’s estimate for the 2020 overlay 

project. The City engineer reviewed the plans and provided an estimate at the meeting. The plans are now 

developed to a point that they can be bid out and staff will be seeking feedback and direction from 

Council. It is anticipated that Council will authorize plans and specifications for bidding at our next 

City Council Meeting (see attached project calendar). The overlay project includes the following 

roads: 

 

• Stephanie Way 

• Brei Kessel Road 

• Merz Way 

• Waldemar Way 

• Providence Place 

• Providence Court 

• Warren Way 

• Providence Curve 

• Providence Path 

• Turner Road 

• Polo Club Road 

• Copeland Road 



• Lindgren Lane 

• Independence Road 

• Budd Street 

• Fieldstone Place 

• Stone Court 

• Hillstrom Road 

• Drake Court 

• Drake Drive 

• Painter Creek Green 

• Timber Island Trail 

 

Betts said Independence Road has dips in it that need attention. Grotting asked if 1 ½ overlay was typical. 

Budde said 1 ½ -2” is typical and it was up to the City’s discretion. Grotting said there are areas that need 

extra attention whereas higher areas might not need as much. Kroells asked if it would be better to do the 

roads before or after the Highway 12 reconstruction. Kaltsas said the bid would be awarded on April 21st with 

the open bidding starting March 25th.  

 

c. City Hall Renovation and Street Overlay Finance Discussion 

o Overview of funding alternatives. 

 

Kaltsas said based on the information presented in this report relating to the City Hall and Street Improvement 

projects, staff has been working with Northland Securities to prepare options for issuing new debt 

that would provide for both projects. The initial discussion had with Council regarding financing for 

both projects looked at the opportunity to capture expiring debt capacity which would become available to the 

City in 2021 while maintaining a flat or constant debt service levy. The current debt service levy for 

Independence includes the following: 

 

Northland has prepared 3 alternatives (Options A, B, C and attached to this report) for structuring debt to pay 

for both the City Hall and Street Reconstruction projects. The alternatives prepared show the potential impacts 

to the City’s debt levy based on how the debt is structured. 

 

The total bond issue would be broken into two pieces; one would fund the street construction project and be 

based on either a 10 or 15 amortization, the second would fund the CIP improvements to City Hall and be 

amortized over a 20-year period. The primary differences between the alternatives relate to length of 

amortization and the interest paid with each alternative. 

 

Based on the initial concept City Hall plans and street overlay plans, the City would need to fund the 

following amounts: 

 

• Street Project: $1,323843 

• City Hall: $2,059,226 

•  Garage/Pole Barn: $250,000 (this number is a placeholder for discussion only) 

 

In order to maintain a flat or consistent annual debt levy of approximately $306,660, the City would have to 

structure the debt around the existing debt. Staff presented information pertaining to potential funding of the 

various projects and discuss options and alternatives with Council. In addition, Northland has prepared a draft 

calendar which outlines the necessary steps that would need to occur as a part of the bonding process (see 

attached project calendar). Staff will ultimately be looking for direction from 



Council relating to the potential projects and possible funding. 

 

Johnson asked if the City rating would qualify from a few years ago. Undahl said it would go back for a 

review for a new rating. Kaltsas noted a Public Hearing would be held and plans adopted to start the 30-day 

process. Undahl noted the tax abatement may not be used for the City Hall remodel. Kaltsas said Scenario B is 

the first choice.  

 

Kaltsas asked if Council felt comfortable with the City Hall remodel and the numbers associated with it. It is a 

healthy market bid with a design and construction contingency. McCoy said he didn’t want to see anything 

cut out that is preferred as it won’t be getting down again anytime soon. Kaltsas noted the pole barn can be 

phased into the plan. McCoy said he would like to see the lobby space bigger.  

 

d. Highway 12/CSAH 92 Project Update 

 

Kaltsas discussed the current status of the project, timing and other information relating to the 

project. They are looking at boundaries and land acquisition at this point while trying to avoid the new homes. 

There will be more public outreach coming soon. Kaltsas said there will be a pond on the Mobile Marine 

corner.  

 

e. Mediacom High Speed Internet Expansion Grant – Update 

 

Kaltsas said Grotting and Horner have put a lot of work into this Grant. Grotting said Mediacom will be 

introducing Phase 2 which will provide coverage for more homes. He said the LMCC has also been helpful. 

The fiber is along County Road 6 and will be accessed for these efforts. Grotting said Ag properties may want 

to try Xtratyme based out of Cokato. 

 

f. Proposed Hennepin County Conversation Easement Across Private Properties South of Highway 12 – 

For Information 

 

Kaltsas said they are looking for comments on the conservation easement that is proposed. Johnson said the 

biggest concern would be if it gets in the way of road construction or developments. Kaltsas said the 

landowner gets a credit for the easement. He noted they would not be taking out trees but rather protecting 

them as this is for habitat protection. 

  

g. Staff Update – Miscellaneous Project Status and Updates 

 

Kaltsas said the Lake Independence Association (LICA) has officially requested a change to the lake wake 

level. They are asking it to be raised 5 inches. There will be Public Hearings scheduled and it will be reviewed 

for potential Ordinance amendment.  

 

Kaltsas said there is some interest in one amending the Mama’s Happy CUP if a building is sold to another 

owner and used as a wellness location. Council will need to consider if they want to amend this or not.  

 

Kaltsas said the property on County Road 90 across from Sam’s Landscaping is being looked at by an 

excavating company. What does the Council think of the use of this property for heavy construction 

equipment? Council was not very receptive to the idea. It is guided commercial/ light industrial. 

 

Community Clean-Up Day is May 7th. Typically, this is shared with Maple Plain, but they do not provide as 

many resources as we do for the event. Spencer has reached out to Mass-Kusske (Mayor, Maple Plain) to see 



what they are willing to contribute as far as personnel and financial resources. Spencer said we should 

proceed with this year but keep track of who is utilizing it from Independence versus to Maple Plain. 

 

Worcester updated Council on the 4th quarter financial report. Cash balance increased from last year to this 

year. The general fund overall appears to be coming in with an increasing reserve. Kaltsas said the City is 

really healthy from the 2019 budget. There will be options to allocate the cash balance. The audit prep will 

begin next week.  

 

Kaltsas said the Comp Plan is coming up on the next Planning Commission agenda so comments back from 

Met Council should be within a month. 

 

Kaltsas said a consideration being talked about is forming a “Fire District”. McCoy represented the City at a 

meeting and said Cloquet has taken a metro department and divided into a rural model through a Fire District 

initiative. He said we would have to get legislation in process to get a Fire District model approved. McCoy 

said Loretto’s first choice would be to merge with Maple Plain. Fire District’s are more flexible with 

manpower. Homeowners are taxed the same rate regardless of home price.  

 

4. Adjourn 

 

Mayor Johnson adjourned the work session at 9:28 a.m.  

 

Respectfully submitted, 
 

__________________________________ 

Trish Gronstal, Recording Secretary 

 























Page 1 

 

City of Independence  
2020 Fee Schedule – Accessory Structure Height Committee Review and Fee Schedule Adoption 

 
To: City Council 

 

From: Mark Kaltsas, City Administrator 
 

Meeting Date: March 2, 2020 
 

 

Discussion: 
The City recently adopted an amendment to the ordinance which established a process for the 
review and consideration of accessory structures that exceed the requisite height limitations 
established in the zoning ordinance.  The amended ordinance allows the City Council to appoint a 
review committee that would review and apply the newly adopted ordinance provisions.   
 

4 An accessory structure may exceed the height of the principle structure if the accessory 
structure meets all applicable criteria of the Section and the following conditions are met: 

(1) Building plans containing any proposed accessory structure with a height 
exceeding that of the principle structure must be submitted to the City in advance 
of work to confirm compliance with this Section. 

(2) The City Council may establish an Accessory Building Height Review Committee 
to review building plans submitted for any proposed accessory structure with a 
height exceeding that of the principle structure to ensure compliance with the 
following:  

a. On properties that are 2.5 acres or less, the proposed accessory structure 
must be located to the rear of the principle structure.  

b. The proposed accessory structure must be detached and separated by a 
minimum distance of 75 feet from the principle structure.  

c. The proposed accessory structure must meet the principle structure 
setbacks from all property lines. 

d. The applicant shall provide with the application, the written consent of 
100% of the owners or occupants of privately or publicly owned real 
estate directly abutting the premises for which the permit is being 
requested (on forms provided by the City).  Where a street separates the 
premises for which the permit is being requested from other neighboring 
property, no consent is required from the owners or occupants of property 
located on the opposite side of the street.  Where an abutting property 
consists of a multiple dwelling, the applicant need only obtain the written 
consent of the owner or manager, or other person in charge of the 
building. 

 
Staff would like Council direction relating to the formation of the committee and appointment of three 
committee members.  It was initially anticipated that the City would appoint two City Council 
Members and one Planning Commission Member or one City Council Member and two Planning 



Page 2 

 

Commission Members to form a three Person Committee.  Staff would like Council to provide 
direction relating to the appointment of the Accessory Building Height Review Committee.   In 
addition to the appointment of the committee, Council will need to amend the Fee Schedule to 
include an Accessory Building Height Review Committee Application fee.  Staff is recommending 
that the City consider adopting a $100 application fee.  This fee would provide approximately ¼ hour 
of administrative review time and ¾ hour of planning/building review time.   
 
The following fees are proposed to be added to the City’s 2020 Fee Schedule: 
 

1. Accessory Building Height Review Committee Application: $100  
 
 
 
Council Recommendation: 
City Council is asked to consider approval of RESOLUTION No. 20-0302-01 establishing the Accessory 
Building Height Review Committee, appointing its members and adopting an update to the 2020 fee 
schedule. 
 
 
Attachments: RESOLUTION NO. 20-0302-01, Committee Formation and Appointment Resolution 
 RESOLUTION NO. 20-0302-02, Proposed 2020 Fee Schedule Update 



LIQUOR LICENSES 

 
Wine, on sale $  600 
On-sale intoxicating $5500 
Off-sale intoxicating $  240 
Sunday On-sale $  200 
Beer Off-sale $    50 
Beer On-sale $  500 
Setup $  500 
Investigation fee $  500 
Temporary liquor (1-4 days) $  100/day 

 
DOG LICENSES (#) 

 
Lifetime License $     20 
Replacement tag $      2 
Dangerous Dog annual fee $   500 
Dog Impound Fee 1st Violation $     35 
   2nd Violation $     70 
   3rd Violation $   105 

 
SERVICE FEES (#) 

 
Address Labels $    50 
Address List $    30 
Copies 8 ½ x 11 $   .25 
Copies, Oversize $   .50 
Copies: City Code Book $    60 
Copies: Subdivision Ordinance $    15 
Copies: Zoning Ordinance $    15 
Copies: Shoreland Ordinance $    15 
Copies: City Comp. Plan $    40 
Copies: Park Comp. Plan $    15 
Copies: Audit Book $    45 
City Address Map $      8 
Zoning Map (color) $      3 
Land Use Map (color) $      3 
Assessment Search written req. $    25 
Flood Zone Search written req. $    25 
Ag Preserve Application $    50 
Ag Preserve Expiration $    50 
NSF Check $    30 
Special Council Meeting fee $  250 
Election Filing fee $      2 
 

 
SIGN PERMIT (#) 

 
Temporary (administrative)              $   100 
Permanent Sign/Site Plan Review   $   250 
Farm Nameplate  Sign Permit          $    25 

ZONING FEES 
 
Extension $   250 
Appeal Admin. Decision $   750 
Move Building $   175 
Zoning Permit (Sheds, Ag buildings) $     40 

   Accessory Building Height Review       $   100 
Grading Permit (100 cu yd or more)  $   500 
(if less than 100 cu. yd, no permit  
required.) 
 

Other (non-defined) Planning/Review: $   250 
 
Staff time in excess of application fees: 

 Professional per hour $   100 
Clerical per hour $     50 

      
Planning Application Type I-Application Fee: 
$1,250/Additional Fee Deposit $750 
 

• Minor Subdivision (Minor Subdivision (Lot 
Line Rearrangement, Lot Consolidation, 
Rural View Lot Subdivision, Lot Split-2 lots 
or less) 

• Rezoning 

• Conditional Use Permit (residential) 

• Interim Use Permit (residential) 

• Right of Way or Easement Vacation 

• Simple Concept Plan 

• Simple Zoning Text Amendment 

• Simple Site Plan Review 
 
Planning Application Type II-Application Fee: 
$1,750/Additional Fee Deposit $1,500 
 

• Preliminary Plat (3 lots or more) - (plus 
$250 per lot) 

• Final Plat (plus $250 per lot) 

• Conditional Use Permit (commercial) 

• Interim Use Permit (commercial) 

• Comprehensive Plan Amendment 

• Complex Concept Plan 

• Complex Site Plan Review 

• Complex Zoning Text Amendment 
 

After-the-fact fees  double 
 
Grading Permit (100 cu yd or more)  $   500 
(if less than 100 cu. yd, no permit  
required.) 
 

 
PARK DEDICATION FEES 

 
$3500 per lot to 4.99 acres + $750 per acre over 5 
acres. 

 
MISC. PERMIT/REIMBURSEMENT FEES 

 
Fireworks Dealer License    $      75 
Tower (wireless communication)         $  1000 
Mailbox Reimbursement                      $     125 

 
    LICENSES (#) 

 
 Garbage hauler/per year $   150 
 Per truck per year $     20 
 Tobacco $   100 

  1st Offense $     75 
  2nd Offense $   200 
  3rd Offense & over $   250 

 Solicitation $   100 
 

   FLAT FEE BUILDING PERMIT FEES (#) 
 

Mechanical  
Furnace $  100 
Air Conditioner $  100 
Gas Fireplace $  100 
Water Heater $    50 
Wood stove/fireplace $  100 
Chimney $  100 
Fuel tank removal $  100 
Lawn Sprinkler $  100 
Plumbing remodel $  100 
Plumbing new $  100 
  ($10 per fixture over five) 
Re-roof $  100 
Re-side $  100 
Window replacement same size $  100 (1) + 
   ($10 each additional opening)                              

 
 
Flat Fee State Permit Surcharge Add  $ 1 

(Example: A/C + Furnace = $201) 
 

Demolition $  100 
Driveway $  100 

    Right Of Way                                       $  100 
 
All Other Building Permits Based on Value 

 
Electrical Permits (Contact State) 



SEPTIC FEES 
 

Private On-site Permit $       300 
Mound Repair $   150 
Abandonment of System/Tank $     75 
Holding Tank with Pumping Agreement $   100 
              First Year $     50 
              Annual                         $         25 
Operating Permit Business $       175 
              First Year                  $       175 
              Annual                      $         75 
Mid-Size System                               $       400 
              (+ $1,000 escrow) 
Total Sewer Connection Fee $  3860 

- Includes $ 1250 City Sewer Permit  
- Includes $ 125 Street to house connect 
- Includes $ 2485 SAC (MUSA line) 

 
Quarterly sewer access charge $      231 
Quarterly availability charge $      200 
 (dwellings not connected to available sewer) 
SAC (MUSA line) $     2485 
Winter septic holding tank escrow* $     8000 
  *Plus Administrative fee $         55 
 
 
OTHER INSPECTION FEES 

 
Investigation/Re-inspection Fee  $     100/1st Hr     

    $        50/Hr. 
Fire Damage Inspection $     100 
 
 
COMMUNITY ROOM RENTAL (#) 
(maximum 200 guests) 
 
Non-Profit                                                $        75 
Security /Damage Deposit $      650 
False Fire Alarm $      350 
Organizations regular mtgs. $      100 
Events under 50 – resident $      150 
Events under 50 – non-resident $      250 
Events 50 – 100 – resident $      200 
Events 50 – 100 – non-resident $      400 
Events 101 – 150 – resident $      300 
Events 101 – 150 – non-resident $      500 
Events 151 – 200 – resident $      400 
Events 151 – 200 – non-resident $      750  
Funeral – resident $         50 
Funeral – non-resident $      100 
Wedding – resident $      400 
Wedding – non-resident $  1000 

 
CONFERENCE ROOM RENTAL (#) 
(seats 25 people) 
 
Rent per day $    100 

 with kitchen $    150 
 per hour  $      35 

 
OVERWEIGHT VEHICLE PERMIT FEES-AT THE 
DISCRETION OF PUBLIC WORKS SUPERVISOR 
 
Daily Permit (per truck/ day max 7 ton)   $     100 
Single Trip-Seasonal, Home Delivery      $     250 
Commercial Tow Truck (per occurrence) $     750 
No Permit                                            DOUBLE FEE 
Emergency-Well & Septic (max 7 ton) NO CHARGE 
Resident Annual to/from (max 5 ton)   NO CHARGE  
                                                                                                                                     
ASSEMBLY PERMIT FEES 
 
Small Assembly Permit (50+ attendees) $      25 
*Medium Assembly (100+ attendees)     $      25 
*Large Assembly (200+ attendees)         $    100 
*Requires West Hennepin Public Safety Deposit ($500)    

 
PARK RENTAL FEES (#) 
 
Commercial, daily - resident  $    200 
Commercial, daily - non-resident       $    300 
Individual, daily - resident $      75 
Individual, daily – non-resident $    150  
(Liability Insurance Required) 
   
 
FREQUENTLY CALLED NUMBERS 
 
Public Works Sup. Shawn Bode  763-479-0530 

City Administrator Mark Kaltsas  763-479-0527 

Building Inspector Bruce Satek  763-479-0531 

Asst. City Admin. Beth Horner  763-479-0527 

Office Assistant Trish Bemmels  763-479-0514 

West Hennepin Public Safety  763-479-0500 

Burn permits WHPS   763-479-0500 

Hennepin County            612-348-3000 

 
CREDIT CARD PAYMENTS ACCEPTED FOR FEES 
IDENTIFIED WITH THE (#) SYMBOL.  THE CITY 
WILL CHARGE THE LISTED FEE, PLUS 
APPLICABLE CHARGES FOR PROCESSING THE 
CREDIT CARD (CURRENTLY 2.75%, PLUS $0.50 
FOR ANY TRANSACTION LESS THAN $100). 

 

 

 

 

 

FEE SCHEDULE 
Effective September 1, 2003 

Revised March 2, 2020 
 

 

 
 

 

1920 COUNTY ROAD 90 

INDEPENDENCE MN 55359 

 

PHONE: 763-479-0527 

FAX:      763-479-0528  

 

Website:  https://ci.independence.mn.us 

 
ALL FEES ARE NON-REFUNDABLE. 

Fees are Subject to change 



 

763.479.0527                                                  1920 County Road 90                                      Fax: 763.479.0528 
                                                                       Independence, MN 55359 
                                                                    www.ci.independence.mn.us 
 

 
 

CITY OF INDEPENDENCE 
RESOLUTION NO. 20-0302-01 

 
RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING THE ACCESSORY BUILDING HEIGHT REVIEW 

COMMITTEE AND APPOINTING ITS MEMBERS 
 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Independence (the City) engages advisory bodies to the City 

Council in addressing planning needs within the community; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City has identified a need to establish a new committee to review 
accessory building heights for conformance with applicable standards; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City has adopted an amendment to City Code, Chapter IV, Section 530 
(ORDINANCE 2019-03) providing for the establishment of the Accessory Building Height 
Review Committee to oversee the application of the criteria established within the ordinance; 
and  

 
WHEREAS, the City has determined that the committee shall be comprised of three (3) members 

who also serve on the City Council or Planning Commission, provided that no more than two (2) members 
of either body shall serve at one time; and  

 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of 

Independence establishes the Accessory Building Height Review Committee and appoints the 
following members to a one (1) year term: 

 
  1._________________________________ 

2._________________________________ 
3._________________________________ 

 

 
     Adopted by the City Council this 2nd day of March 2020, by a vote of ___ayes and ___nays. 
 
 
 

       ___________________________ 
       Marvin Johnson, Mayor 

 
___________________________ 
Mark Kaltsas, City Administrator 



 

763.479.0527                                                  1920 County Road 90                                      Fax: 763.479.0528 
                                                                       Independence, MN 55359 
                                                                    www.ci.independence.mn.us 
 

 
CITY OF INDEPENDENCE 

RESOLUTION NO. 20-0302-02 
 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING AN UPDATE TO THE  
CITY’S FEE SCHEDULE 

 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Independence (the “City) is a municipal corporation under the 
laws of Minnesota; and 

 
  WHEREAS, the City has adopted a Fee Schedule to set forth fees for certain services 
provided by the City; and 
 
  WHEREAS, the Fee Schedule is referred to in the City’s Code of Ordinances and 
determined to be necessary to ensure that the City is reimbursed for the cost of providing the 
services. 
 
  NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
INDEPENDENCE, MINNESOTA: 
 

1. The Fee Schedule attached hereto as Exhibit A is hereby adopted. 
 

This resolution was adopted by the City Council of the City of Independence on this 
2nd day of March 2020, by a vote of ____ayes and ____nays. 

 
 
 

______________________________ 
       Marvin Johnson, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 __________________________________ 
Mark Kaltsas, City Administrator 
 

 
 

 
 




